
Housing Authority Minutes 5/19/21 Page 1 
 

 

CUMBERLAND HOUSING AUTHORITY ANNUAL MEETING (VIA ZOOM) 
May 19, 2021, Meeting Minutes 

 
I. Call to Order:  Chairman Bill Hansen called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm. 
 
II. Roll Call:  Present:  Bill Hansen - Chairman, Connie Bingham, Meredith Burgess, 
Cara Biddings, Janene Gorham, Norman Maze, Jr. & Bill Stiles.  Staff: Carla Nixon - 
Executive Director, Bill Shane - Town Manager & Christina Silberman - Administrative 
Assistant.  Absent:  Sally Pierce. 
 
III. Executive Director’s Report: 

 

1. Tenant Updates:  Executive Director Carla Nixon reported that there is one vacancy 
of a one-bedroom unit.  The unit will be upgraded with new paint, flooring, cabinets and 
a new bathroom vanity to modernize the unit.  Ms. Nixon said that this is a prototype 
renovation.  We can do this for a budget friendly amount.  The Town will decide whether 
to do the renovations as units become vacant or to have a budget line item to start 
doing all of the units for some purpose such as flooring or paint. 
 

Ms. Silberman noted that there are about a half of a dozen applications that need to be 
added to the waiting list.  The one-bedroom waiting list currently has 32 residents, 32 
with resident family members and 19 others.  The two-bedroom waiting list currently has 
69 residents, 35 with resident family members and 19 others. 
 

Ms. Nixon said that we have a healthy waiting list and people often call or drop in to 
check where they are on the list.  Sometimes the list has not moved a bit.  Ms. Nixon 
said that we can go a year without any turnovers or we can get three or four within a 
couple of months.   
 

Mr. Stiles asked how likely people on the waiting list are to respond if something 
becomes available.  Ms. Silberman replied that with the last one-bedroom vacancy she 
called all of the current residents on the list.  The last current resident accepted the unit.  
Ms. Silberman added that the two-bedroom list is longer.  There are some people who 
have their names on both the one-bedroom and two-bedroom lists.  Mr. Stiles 
wondered, looking at the numbers that we have vs. those that are ready to accept 
something, if the list is really accurate or germane.  Ms. Silberman noted that with the 
family members of residents and others on the waiting list, a new tenant would likely be 
found easily but may not be a current resident.   
 

Ms. Nixon reported that a couple of years ago, the list was culled to ensure the people 
on the list wished to remain on the list and had not moved away or passed on.  The list 
we have now are people that would like to live here.  Ms. Nixon said that the issue is 
that people don’t have a lot of time when we call and ask if they would like the unit 
which could be available in 45 days.  Mr. Shane asked if someone moves into a one-
bedroom unit and then a two-bedroom unit becomes available, would they be at the top 
of the two-bedroom list.  Ms. Nixon replied that a tenant in a one-bedroom unit would 
still have to wait for their name to come up on the two-bedroom list.  They would not get 
any priority.   
 



Housing Authority Minutes 5/19/21 Page 2 
 

 

2. Capital Improvements:  Ms. Nixon reported that in recent years the roofs and 
heating systems have been replaced, driveway paving/repairs have been done and all 
of the windows were replaced with new high efficiency windows.  Ms. Nixon said that 
now we are honing in on the units one at a time to renovate.  Ms. Nixon said that we 
don’t have to renovate the units, the units do rent, but they are 30 years old now and 
look dated.  Ms. Nixon said that she will send photos and a video of the renovated unit 
so they can see how it comes out. 
 

Norman Maze asked if there are any long-term improvements planned in the next five 
years.  Ms. Nixon said there are no big-ticket items and the units are in good shape. 
 
3. Financial Projections:  Mr. Shane shared the senior housing budget and said that 
the budget is in better shape than what was projected. 

 
 

The budget for this year will have about $23,000 in excess revenues over expenses.  
One of the bonds expired last year and Mr. Shane pointed out the reduction in the bond 
interest and principal expenses for new year.  The Housing Authority paid more in 
expenses than there were revenues coming in for the past two years.  The budget has 
stabilized and there is funding for the capital reserve.  The new budget has $27,000 for 
apartment rehab and $35,000 to be transferred to the capital reserve.  Mr. Shane said 
that the next rehab will be for kitchen cabinets and counter tops and in less than 3 
years, all of the units can be done without any financing.  Mr. Shane said that this 
projection proposes no rent increase and it is the Authority’s call if they want to have a 
rent increase this year.   
 



Housing Authority Minutes 5/19/21 Page 3 
 

 

Ms. Bingham asked about the summary notes regarding capital reserves and pointed 
out an error in the excel spreadsheet. 
 

Mr. Shane asked for thoughts about a rent increase.  Mr. Shane said he is not sure if a 
rent increase is necessary this year.  Mr. Shane said he would look at 1% or 2%.  A 
discussion ensued about a rent increase.   
 

Ms. Burgess said she is okay with a 1% increase and she excused herself from 
participating in the remainder of the meeting. 
 
IV. Correspondence: None. 
 
V. New Business:   

 

021-01:  To set rental rates for fiscal year 2021-22:  Mr. Stiles moved to increase the 
rents by one percent (1%), seconded by Ms. Bingham and VOTED, 6 yeas – motion 
passes.  (Roll Call Vote: Hansen – yea, Bingham – yea, Maze – yea, Biddings – yea, 
Stiles – yea, Gorham – yea)  
 

021-02:  To consider and act upon adoption of the proposed 2021-2022 fiscal year 
budget:  Mr. Stiles moved to accept the budget as presented by the Town Manager and 
amended, seconded by Mr. Maze and VOTED, 6 yeas – motion passes.  (Roll Call 
Vote: Hansen – yea, Bingham – yea, Maze – yea, Biddings – yea, Stiles – yea, Gorham 
– yea)  
 
VI. Adjourn:  Mr. Stiles moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Ms. Bingham and 
VOTED, 6 yeas – unanimous, motion carries.  
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________________ 
Christina Silberman, Administrative Assistant 
 
 


